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3, 26 25,022 30,292
3, 26 (4,502) (14,958)
20,520 15,334
4, 26 - 16
4, 26 (754) (778)
(754) (762)
5 (674,696) (94,246)
6 659,116 93,857
7 19 132
4,205 14,315
8,9 (88) (85)
10, 26 (6,057) (9,628)
(6,145) (9,713)
(1,940) 4,602
11 500 (1,119)
(1,440) 3,483
(1,440) 3,483
31 2015 31
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12, 13, 22, 23, 24, 26 99,543 66,717
11 2,535 1,639
345,225 508,760
12, 22, 26 1,733,789 1,228,946
12, 13, 22, 23, 24, 26 19,173 18,938
12, 14, 22, 26 270 550
11 51 -
12, 15, 26 120,489 106,670
1,873,772 1,355,104
2,218,997 1,863,864
16, 25 6,569 6,613
25 1,321 1,321
16, 25 1,833 1,789
17 9,057 10,497
18,780 20,220
12, 18, 22, 23, 25, 26 822,557 1,075,548
12, 19, 22, 23, 25 462,772 275,941
12, 13, 22, 23, 24, 26 103,704 67,235
1,389,033 1,418,724
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(13,870) (5,112)
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659,116 93,857
OCA NHI
18 26 OCA
2016 31 2,573
2015 13
2016 31 2015 31
(11) 126
30 6

19 132
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2014
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26

APA
31
APA
NHI

10
2015

OooooOodd
2016 31 2015 31

72) (66)

®) (10)

(10) ©)]

(88) (85)

2015 2016 31 10
2016 31 2015 31

(5,162) (8,870)

(126) (85)

(567) (254)

(123) (342)

(20) (26)

(59) (51)

(6,057) (9,628)

2012 31 2012 11 30
APA
APA 2012 2013
2016 31 2015 31
2016 31
5,162 2015 8,870
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31
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2015

25

31

OooooOodd
2016 31 2015 31
(396) (395)
896 (724)
500 (1,119)
2016 31 2015 31
(1,940) 4,602
485 (1,151)
15 32
500 (1,119)
25 2015 25 25.77 2015
2016 31 2015 31
®) (48)
467 467
(396) (395)
(15) (29)
51 )
1,639 2,363
896 (724)
2,535 1,639
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12

2016 31

1,976,936

270

- 15 118,050

118,716

1,976,936
118,716
270

118,050

2,095,256

118,716

2,213,972

142,117

1,038,882

348,702

7,930

654,663

1,038,882
654,663
348,702
142,117

7,930

142,117

1,395,514

654,411

2,192,294

2015 31

1,669,350

550

- 15 104,730

85,655

1,669,350
85,655
550

104,730

1,774,630

85,655

1,860,285

183,030

1,225,973

5,910

417,586

1,225,973

417,586
183,030

5,910

183,030

1,231,883

417,586

1,832,499
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ooooOoog
13 ®
2016 31 2015 31
10,657 15,073
57,985 56,654
44,322 10,484
2,553 385
3,199 3,059
118,716 85,655
24,617 18,783
44,277 49,534
65,274 11,686
4,750 99,944
3,199 3,083
142,117 183,030
2016 31 2015 31
527,597 839,867
1,541,831 1,812,580
489,880 406,061
80,235 178,500
281,132 220,461
2,920,675 3,457,469
15 20
@
14
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15
22, 26
16
454
454 113,000

oOoOooodn

2016 31 2015 31
118,050 104,730
2,439 1,940
120,489 106,670

1SDA
315,000

2016 31 2015 31
8,402 8,402
113 113
454 454
51,302 51,302
128.0520 128.9072
6,569 6,613
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OoOoOoOoOodno
2016 31 2015 31
8,402 8,402
6,569 6,613
1,833 1,789
373
17
2016 31 2015 31
18
a.
2016 31 2015 31
1,075,548 1,497,816
276,970 322,339
(320,660) (654,663)
(141,752) (103,689)
(67,549) 13,745
822,557 1,075,548
b.
2016 31 2015 31
150,425 568,154
382,803 97,700
(505,556) (617,449)
141,752 103,689
46,901 (1,669)
216,325 150,425
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19
OCA
2016 31
31
2016 31
20
22 26

NHI

1,290
1,283

17,331

1SDA

NHI

2016

2015

oOoOooodn
26
2016 31 2015 31
654,663 417,586
654,663 417,586
31 2,573
2015 13 2015
3,702
2016 31 2015 31
7,930 5,910
7,923 11,140
15,853 17,050
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oOoOooodn
21
2016 31 NHI 223,600 2015 262,875
22
CRO CFO
EMB

EMB

73/210



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

GIRMC

GIRMC

GIRMC

oOoOooodn
EMB
GIRMC
GIRMC
GIRMC
EMB
EMB
GRMC GIRMC
GRMC
GIRMC
2016 31 2015 31
2016 31 2015 31

NHI
BBB+ 2016

74/210



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

ooOoooOoo
2016 31 2015 31
13 118,716 85,655
270 550
12 1,979,371 1,671,284
20 (7,930) (5,910)
2,090,427 1,751,579
1SDA
2.3 e
2016 31
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EMB

@ ©))
©))
@ ®) (©)

EMB NHI CFO EMB

43 2015 50

76/210



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

2016 31
30 90
30 90
- 16,148 35,677 188,580 429,397 571,160 1,240,962
188,637 3,082 2,000 9,275 253,742 260,848 717,584
- 111,748 170,869 66,585 - - 349,202
- 223,600 - - - - 223,600
188,637 354,578 208,546 264,440 683,139 832,008 2,531,348
188,637 354,578 208,546 264,440 683,139 832,008 2,531,348
2015 31
30 90
30 90
- 38,480 29,276 128,746 618,552 951,944 1,766,998
140,984 529 997 5,062 128,880 179,514 455,966
- 121,740 90,861 50,274 - - 262,875
140,984 160,749 121,134 184,082 747,432 1,131,458 2,485,839
140,984 160,749 121,134 184,082 747,432 1,131,458 2,485,839

77/210



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

OoooooO
2016 31
30 )
30 0
(17,198) 1,742 3,442 15,115 55,970 126,038 185,109
(17,198) 1,742 3,442 15,115 55,970 126,038 185,109
- 525,649 64,987 12,985 73,183 102,717 779,521
- (523,209) (62,211) (3,691) (42,981) (97,755) (729,847)
- 2,440 2,776 9,294 30,202 4,962 49,674
(17,198) 4,182 6,218 24,409 86,172 131,000 234,783
2015 31
30 <)
30 0
- 3,192 6,187 27,562 114,160 233,294 384,395
- 3,192 6,187 27,562 114,160 233,204 384,395
- 279,232 502,623 13,265 56,462 77,422 929,004
- (233,788) (487,584) (13,942) (30,027) (70,657) (835,998)
- 45,444 15,039 677) 26,435 6,765 93,006
- 48,636 21,226 26,885 140,595 240,059 477,401
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@ ORM

®

EMB GIRMC
ORM 1) 2) 3)
ORM

ORM
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ooooOoog
2016 31
243,147 236,257 -
822,557 760,689 1,529
2015 31
440,404 448,459 -
1,075,548 1,012,828 1,430
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2016 31 2015 31

118,716 80,067 38,649 85,655 44,235 41,420
10,657 9,038 1,619 15,073 15,007 66
57,985 21,018 36,967 56,654 17,153 39,501
44,322 44,294 28 10,484 8,670 1,814
2,553 2,553 - 385 385 -
3,199 3,164 35 3,059 3,020 39
118,716 80,067 38,649 85,655 44,235 41,420
142,117 103,975 38,142 183,030 141,381 41,649
24,617 22,998 1,619 18,783 18,717 66
44,277 7,817 36,460 49,534 9,804 39,730
65,274 65,246 28 11,686 9,872 1,814
4,750 4,750 - 99,944 99,944 -
3,199 3,164 35 3,083 3,044 39
654,663 616,425 38,238 417,586 400,260 17,326

796,780 720,400 76,380 600,616 541,641 58,975
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OooooOodd
2016 31
41,420 41,649 17,326
3,781 5,231 446
- - 27,650
(6,563) (8,910) (3,336)
1,035 1,319 6,450
(1,024) (1,147) (10,298)
38,649 38,142 38,238
15,220 (14,405) 157
2015 31
79,702 79,797 -
(26,565) (27,697) (330)
- - 17,750
(11,323) (10,532) (94)
366 841 -
(760) (760) -
41,420 41,649 17,326
2,250 (1,884) 424

2015 31
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oOoOooodn
0TC
2016 31 1,035 2015 366
1,319 2015 841
947 2015 283
1,231 2015 758

2016 31 1,024 2015 760 1,147

2015 760

451 2015 422 572 2015
309
575 2015 422 572 2015 309
PCVG
PCVG
PCVG CFO

CFO
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ooooood
MVG
MVG CRO
Independent Price Verification Processes 1PV
1PV
1PV

PCVG MVG
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OooooOodd
2016 31
()}
1,619 1,619 DCF/ 16.70-17.21%
36,967 36,460 DCF/ 0.07-2.74%
13.84-91.39%
-0.57-0.97
(-1.0 to 1.0)
28 28 DCF/ 1.17-4.47%
21.87-46.05%
0.61-0.76
(-1.0 to 1.0)
35 35 DCF 0.75-0.75
(-1.0 to 1.0)
- 38,238 DCF/ 0.10-2.74%
13.84-91.39%
0.35-0.87
(-1.0 to 1.0)
38,649 76,380
2015 31
®
66 66 DCF/ 15.05-15.93%
39,501 39,730 DCF/ 0.79-3.29%
13.73-31.52%
-0.01-0.99
(-1.0 to 1.0)
1,814 1,814 DCF/ 0.00-5.73%
16.27-47.33%
-0.75-0.91
(-1.0 to 1.0)
39 39 DCF 0.75-0.75
(-1.0 to 1.0)
- 17,326 DCF/ 0.48-2.88%
14.06-28.98%
0.35-0.99
(-1.0 to 1.0)
41,420 58,975
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Ogoooood
2016 31 2015 31
211 (126)
625 312
(126) 25
710 211
24
2016 31
(€V] (&) [©)
43,526 - 43,526 (34,378) (7,930) 1,218
2,110 - 2,110 1,174 - 3,284
24,360 - 24,360 (24,360) - -
69,996 - 69,996 (57,564) (7,930) 4,502
127,566 - 127,566 (57,564) (70,002) -
127,566 - 127,566 (57,564) (70,002) -
2015 31
o ® ®
63,227 - 63,227 (56,505) (5,910) 812
143,518 - 143,518 (5,903) - 137,615
1,280 - 1,280 (1,280) - -
208,025 - 208,025 (63,688) (5.910) 138,427
144,680 - 144,680 (63,688) (80,992) -
144,680 - 144,680 (63,688) (80,992) -
(€))
@
(©)
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1SDA
2016 31 2015 31

6,569 6,613

1,321 1,321

1,833 1,789

9,723 9,723
1,038,882 1,225,973
822,557 1,075,548
216,325 150,425
654,663 417,586
462,772 275,941
191,891 141,645
348,702 -
348,702 -
2,051,970 1,653,282
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ooooooo
i. NHI 2016 31
5,429 2015 2,539 2016 31 NHI
1,133,600 2015 444,397
2016 31 2015 31 NHI
ii. 18 NHI1
2016 31 737
2015 704 2016 31 NHI
737 2015 704
iii. APA 10 APA NHI
5,162 2015 8,870

2016 31 5,162 2015 8,870

iv. 2016 31 NHI
2015 36
2016 31 NHI 34 2015 18
2016 31 2016
31 2015 31
i.
2016 31 2015 31
ii.
iii. 1SDA
2016 31
43,006 127,046 2015

62,580 144,033

iv.
2016 31
2015 329
V. 2016 31
14,469 2015 24,838

11,754 2015 23,653

2,715 2015 1,185
Vi 18

2016 31

17 2015 75 2016

89/210



EDINETOO OO
000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000(E24747)
0oooood

31 17 2015 75

2016 31 2015 31

\Y

s

10

27

2016 31
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28

20

2016 31 1,440
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Interest and similar income
Interest and similar expense
Met interest Income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission axpense
Met fee and commission expense

Met trading loss

Met gain on financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Other operating income

Met operating income

Salaries and social charges
General and administrative expenses

Total operating expenses
Profiti{loss) before tax
Taxation benefit!(expense)

Profit/{loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income for the
year

Hote

iM%
3,05

428
4,26

a9
10,26

2016 2015
Milliors of JPY Millions of JPY

25,022 30,282

(4,502 {14, 958)

20,520 15,334

. 18

(754 {778)

(754) (762

(674 696) (94,24E)

659 116 93,857

19 132

4205 14,315

(88) (85)

(B,057) (9 628)

(B.145) (3,713

(1,940) 4,602

500 {1,118)

{1,440 3,483

{1,440 3,483

The Company did not have Other Comprehensive Income for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31

March 2015,

92/210
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Mon-current assets

Loans and advances to affiliates
Derivative financial azsets
Deferred tax assets

Tatal non-current assets

Current assets

Loans and acvances ta affiliates
Derivative financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Income tax receivabie

Other assets

Total current assets

Total assets

Shareheolder's equity and liabilities

Shareholder's equity
lssued and paid-up capital
Share premium

Reserve

Retained eamings

Total sharehalder's equity

Men-current liabilities

Debt issued and ather borrowing
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Debt issued and other borrowing
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Borrowing from affiliates

Derivative financial liabilities

Income tax payable

Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total sharehalder's equity and liabilities

Mote

12222308
12,13,22,23,24,26
1

122226
12,13,22,23.24.26
121422275
1"
12,1528

1625

16,25
17

12,18,22,23,25,26

12,19,22,23.25
121322232428

12,18,22,25,26

12,19.22,23.25

2328
1213222324 26
1
122026
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Millions of JFY Millions of JFY
243147 440,404
0g 543 86,717
2535 1,639
345225 508,780
1,733,789 1,228 845
19,173 18,9358
270 550
a1 .
120,489 106,670
1,873,772 1,355 104
2,218,997 1,863,854
6,569 6,613
1,321 1,341
1,833 1,789
8,057 10,497
18,780 20,220
622 557 1,075,548
462,772 275,941
103,704 67,235
1,389,033 1,418,724
216,325 150,425
191,891 141,645
348 702 .
s M3 115,795
- 5
15,853 17,050
B11,184 424 920
2,200,217 1,843 844
2 218 887 1,863 854
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Operational activities
Profiti(loss) for the year

Adjustments for:
Met profit/{loss) from financing activities
Others

Operating assets and operating liabilities:
Decreasa/(increase) in loans and advances
to affiliates
Increase in borrowing from affiliates
Decrease/{increase) in derivative financial
assels
Increasef{decrease) in derivative financial
lizbilities
Increase in cther operating assets
Decrease in other operating hiabilities

Met cash flows from/{used in) operating

activities

Financing activities

Proceeds fram debt issued and other borrawing
Proceeds from financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Redemption of debt issued and other borrowing
Redemption of financial liabilties designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Wet cash flows from/{used in) financing
activities

Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents
het foreign exchange difference

Cash and cash eguivalents at 1 Apnl

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

QOperational cash flows

Interest paid
Imterest received
Taxation payment

2016 2015

Mote Milliors of Y Millions of JPY
(1,440) 3,483

35,057 (102,075)

(&50) 651

2 (307 588) 454 059
348,702 -

12152223 {33,061) 32,140
1213.2223 {40,913) 68,468
(13,870) (5,112)

{1,202) [6.888)

{11,203} 444,766

12,1822 655 774 420,039
12,15.22.23 1|DB4.315 417,203
121822 (826,218) (1,272112)
12,19.22,23 LEEEIQMJ {11.39?:'
10,829 (446,767)

(274) {2,001)

(B) 73

550 2478

14,26 270 550

2018 2015

Millions of JFY Millions of JPY
13 427) [30,415)
24 522 33,103
Bk (467 (457)
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Corporate information

Momura Europe Finance M.V, (the “Compamy™) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Momura Holdings, Inc.
{"MHI", a compary incorporated in Japan and listed in Japan, the United States of Amenica and
Singapore, which is also the ulimate parent of the Compary.

The Comparny, incorporated and domiciled in Amsterdam, the Metherlands, is a limited liability comparny
under the Dutch law and its registered office is at Rembrandt Tower, Amstelplein 1, 1086 HA Amsterdam,
the Metherlands.

The Company's principal activity is to act as a funding entity for NHI and its subsidianes (collectively the
“Mormura Group”).

The Company's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 shall be submitted to the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders on 15" July 2016 for adoption. The shareholder's meeting can reject
the financial statements but cannat amend them.

2. Accounting policies
21 Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company for the year endad 31 March 2016 have been prepared in
accordance with Intermnational Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the Ewropean
Union ("EL"). The financial staterments have also been prepared in accordance with the requirements
in Part 8 Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The financial statements have been prepared on a histoncal cost basis except for denvative financial
instruments and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss, which have all
been measured at fair value.

The financial statements are presented in Japanese Yern I:'JF"[""}I and all values are rounded 1o the
nearest million (*Millions of JPY™) except where otherwise stated.

22 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements reguires maragement to make judgements,
eslimates and agsumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures.

Eair value of financial instruments

Significant amount of judgements and estimates were apphed to the fair value of cetain financial assets
and financial liabilities. Various valuation techniques are used to determine fair values of financial assets
and financial liabilities, where these fair values cannot be derived from an active market, Observable
market data is used in the valuation models as far as feasible. If no obsenvable data is available, a degree
of judgement is required to detemmine fair values

I i I il

The Company reviews its loans and advances at each statement of financial position date to assess
whether an allowance for impairment should be recorded in the statement of comprehensive income.
In particular, judgement by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows when determining the level of allowance required, Such estimates are based on
assumplions that @ number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the
allowance. A loan is impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or maore events
that occurrad after the initial recognition of the loan, the estimated future cash flows of the loan have
been affected. For loans, objective evidence of impairment includes for example a significant financial
difficulty of the borrawer, default ar delinquency in interest or principal payments or probatality that the
borrower will enter bankruptey or financial re-organisation.

96/210



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.2 Summary of significant accounting pelicies

a) Fereign currencies

The fimancial statements are presented in JFY, which is the functional and presentation curency of the
Compary.

Foreign currency transactions during the period are franslated at the rates of exchange on the date of the
fransaction

Subsequent to intial recognition monetany items are translated at closing rate and non-monetary items
at histoncal spot rate at each statement of financial position date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on
financial assets and financial liabilities that are monetary assets and monetary liabiliies are recognised
inthe statement of comprehensive income.

b}  Operating income
(i} Interest income and expense

Interest income and expernse for all financial instruments, except for those cdassified as derivatives held
for trading and financial habilities designated at fair value through profit or oss, are recognised under
Intarest and simifar income or Inferest and similar expense using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method

The EIR method is & method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or liability (or a
group of assets and liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant periods. The EIR is the rate that exactly discourts the expected future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument, or when appropriate, a shorter perod, to
the net carrying amount of the instrument. This calculation takes into account the impact of all fees
and commissions, paid or received, directly attributable to the fransactions, and discounts or
premiums that are integral part of the EIR method.

(i) Met fees and commission income

Loan ongination fees are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as an adjustment to the
yield on the financial assets carmed at amontised cost using the EIR method

Upfront fees received and paid on derivative financial instruments are recognised as part of the intial fair
value measurement of the related financial instrument.

If it is probable that the Company will enter inte a specific lending arrangement and the loan commitment
is nat within the scope of 1AS 39, the commitment fee received is regarded as compensation for an
ongoing involvement with the acquisiion of a financial instrument and, together with the relsted
fransaction costs (as defined in |AS 39), is deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the EIR. IF the
cammitment expires without the Company making the |oan, the fee is recognised as revenue an axpiry.
Loan commitments that are within the scope of 1AS 39 are accounted for as denvatives and measured at
fair value,

cj Fair value of financial instruments

Some of the financial instruments of the Company are held at fair value, A description of the
Company's policies with regards to its application of fair value measurements to significant financial
instruments is as follows:

(i) Determination of fair values and fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives, at fair value at each balance

sheet date. For other financial instruments which are measured at amontised cost, fair values are
disclosad in Mote 24,
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
tranzaction between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement is
basad on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

- Inthe pancipal market for the asset or liabality, or

- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

Where quoted market prices or broker/dealer quotations are not available for financial instroments,
prices for similar instruments or valuation pricing models are considerad in the determination of fair
value. Such financial instruments are valued using models with significant unobservable inputs such
as correlation, long-dated volatility, or other unobservable inputs. Valuation pricing models consider
contractual terms, position size, underying asset prices, interest rates, dividend rates, time value,
volatility and other statistical measurements for the relevant instruments or for instruments with similar
characteristics, These models also incorporate adjustiments relating to market liguidity adjustments,
These adjustments are fundamental components of the fair value calculation process. The valuation
technigue used maximises the use of market inputs and minimises the use of Company-speciic
inputs which are unobservable in the market.

Valuation pricing models and therr underlying assumptons impact the amount and tming of
unrealized gains and losses recognised and the use of different valuation pricing models or underlying
assumptions could produce different financial results. Any changes in the fixed income, equity, and
foreign exchange and commodity markets can impact the Company's estimates of fair value in the
fulure, patentially affecting trading gains and lksses The Company's estimates of fair value may
invalve greater subjectivity due to the lack of transparent market data available upon which to base
assumptions of underlying valuation pricing models.

The Company applies exception in IFRS 13.48 to measure the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities on the basis of mad price. For hybad instruments where the embedded dervatives
are separated and financial instruments for which the fair value option ("FVO") iz applied, the exposure
an such instruments is offset by the hedging dervatives.

All gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial instruments that are classified as held
for trading are recognised under Neat rading incomedloss).

All assets and liakalities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 Unadjusted quated prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities accessible by the
Comparry at the measurement date.

Level 2 Quoted prices in inactive markets of prices containing other inputs which are observable,
gither directly or indirectly. Valuation technigues using observable inputs reflect assumptions
used by market paricipants in pricing financial instruments and are based con data obtained
from independent market sources at the measurement date.,

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are significant to the fair value measuremert of the financial
instrument,  Valuation technigues using uncbservable inputs reflect management's
assumptions about the estimates used by other market participants in valuing similar financial
instruments. These valuation technigues are developed based on the best awvailable
information at the measurement date.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liakilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above

For assats and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
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Company determines whether transfers have ocourred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation at the beginning of each reporting period,

(i) Recognition of day 1 gains and losses

The fair value of a financial instrument is normally the transaction price (e the fair value of
consideration given or received). However, in some cases, the fair value at inception will be based on
a waluation pricing model incorporating only observable parameters in the market or on other
abservable current market transactions in the same instrument, without modfication or repackaging.
Where such valuation techniques are used to derive fair values from market cbservable inputs, the
difference between fair value and the transaction price is intially recognised in the statement of
comprehnensive income.

Valuation techniques incorporating significant unobservable perameters may also be used to
determine fair value at inception. In such cases, the difference between the transaction price and
model value is only recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the inpuls become
observable or when the instrument is derecognised.

{ili)  Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss

Certain financial instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss by management
whin one of the following criteria is met:

1. The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the
cash flows resulting from the financial instrument; or

2 Fair value will eliminate or signficartly reduce a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise result from measuring related financial instruments
on different bases, or

3. The financial instrument is part of a group of financial instruments both managed and
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk managerment or
investment strategy. Information about these financial instruments is provided internally
on a fair value basis o the Company's key management personnel,

The Compary seeks to minimize the market risks by enfering into derivative agreements to
economically hedge the exposures of medium term notes. The value of hedging denvative and the
associated note have the same performance which offset each other, thus by applying FVO to notes
the Company expects to reduce recognition inconsistency and valuation volatility.

Starting from 1 Apnl 2014, the Company applies FVO to all newly issued fixed-rate plain vanilla notes
and hybrid instruments where the embedded derivatives are not separated.

For other financial instruments, the Company undertakes FVO election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. This applies to those instruments that meet one or more of the above criteria, where
fair value would provide a fairer representation of the risks associated with those instruments.

The election of FVO must take place on initial recognition of the financial instrument and may not be
revoked subsequently.

d) Financial instruments

Financial ingtruments within the scope of |AS 39 are classified either as financial aszets or financal
liabilities at fair value through profit or less, leans and receivables, financial liabilities at amortised cost,
available-for-sale investments ar held-ta-matunty investments,

The Campany determines the classification of its financal assets on intial recognition depending
upon the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired and their characteristics. For
hybrid instruments, the Company considers whether a contract contains an embedded derivative
when the Company first becomes party to it and determines the appropriate classification at that time.
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(i) Dervative financial instruments

Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss include derivative financial
instruments held for trading. Financial assets and financial liabilties are classified as held for trading if
(1) they are acquired or incurred principally for the purpase of sale or repurchase in the near term; (2)
on initial recognition they are part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or (3)
they are derivatives, except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee or a designated and effective
hedging instrument.

Dervative instruments are used primarily for rsk management purposes. The Company uses
derivatives to economically hedge exposures such as its interest and foreign exchange exposures. In
accordance with IAS 39, all dervatives are recognised intially on the date when the Company
becomes a party to the contract at fair value and subsequently measured at fair value, with derivatives
having positive fair values camied as assets and derivatives with negative fair values carried as
liabilities in the statement of financial position,

Derivatives embedded in contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair
value if (1) their economic charactenstics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts; (2) a separate instrument with the same tems as the embedded derivative would meet the
definion of a2 denvative, and (3) if the hybnd {combaned) instrument s not measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of comprehensive INcome.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required.

(i) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities classified in this category are those that hawve been designated by management
upon initial recognition when deing so results in more relevant information, Instruments so designated
are fixed-rate plain vanilla notes, hybrid instruments where the embedded derivatives are not
separated and the instruments that meet one or more of the criteria mentioned in Note 2.3 ¢) (i),

These instruments are recognised inifially at fair value and transaction costs are taken directly to the
statement of comprehensive income. Interest expenses, gains and losses ansing from changes in fair
value and transaction costs associated to the financial liabilities designated at fair value through prafit
or loss are recognised under Nt gain on financial iabililies designated at fair value through profid or
loss, except for the currency translation effect which is included in Nel trading incomeadioss).

Loan commitments designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are inowithin the
scope of [AS 38 These loan commitments are intially recognized on the date when the Company
becomes a party to the contract, and subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value
reported under Net gain on financial iabiilies designated at fair value through profit or loss.

(il  Financial instruments at amortised cost

a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are initially
recognised on the date when the Company becomes a party to the contract, including ary
direct and incremental transaction costs. After initial measuremenrt, loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the EIR method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is caloulated taking into account ary discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the EIR and transaction costs. Gains
ard losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amorisation process.

b)  Financial liabilities at amorfised cost
Financial liabiities at amorised cost include certain bonds and notes issued and other
borrowings. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised on the date when the

100/210



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company becomes a party to the contract. After initial measurement, these instruments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method

Initial measurament of financial insfruments

When a financial asset or financial liability is recognised inifially, the Company measures it at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset or financial iakility not at fair value through profit or loss,
tranzaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or
financial liability.

Deracognition

A firancial asset is derecognised when the nights to receive cash flow from the asset have expired or
when the Company has transferred its rights to receive the cash flow from the asset and the Compamy
has transferred substartially all the risks and rewards of the asset.

A financial liability s derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
differert terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modfied, such an exchange or
medification is treated as a derecognition of the onginal liakaity and a recognition of a new liakility, and
the difference in the respective canying amounts is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
NGO

) Impairment

The Company assesses at the statement of financial position date whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset 1s considerad
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more loss
events that occurred after the initial recogrition of the asset and prior to the statement of financial
position date, and that losg event has had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset that can be reliably estimated,

For loans and receivables, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
assets carrying amount and the present value of expected futwre cash flows discounted at the assets
ariginal EIR. The amourt of the loss is included in the statement of comprehensive income, If, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurning after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment 1055 15 reversed in the statement of comprehensive income.

fj Offsetting financial instruments
Fimancial assets and financial liabilities are presented on a gross basis unless the Compary has a

legally enforceable nght to set off the financial asset and financial liability and the Company intends to
seflle the financial asset and financial liability on a net basis,
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g) Hedge accounting

The Company can make use of dervalive instruments to manage exposures to intereg rate rnisks. In
ofder o manage a particilar risk, the Compary may apply hedge accounting for transactions which meet
the cateria explained under |AS 39,

Interest rate swaps can be designated as hedging instruments in fair value hedge relationships. At the
inception of the hedge relationship, the relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument
should be formally documented, including the nature of the nsks, the objective and sirategy for
undertaking the hedge and the method that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging
relationship,

Alsa, at the inception of the hedging relationship, a formal assessment should be undemaken to ensure
that the hedging instrument is expected to be highly effective in offselting the designated risk in the
hedged item. The effectiveness of hedging relationships is assessed at every statement of financial
postion date, A hedge relationship is expected to be highly effectve if the changes in fair value
attnbutable to the hedged risk during the period for which the hedge is designated are expected to offsst
in a range of 80%-125%.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or when the hedge no longer
meets the catena for hedge accounting, then the hedging accounting is dscontinued. The difference
between the camying amount of the hedgad item on the last date when the hedging relationship was
assessed as effective and the amount at which it would have been camed had the hedge never existed is
amortised over the remaining term of the original hedge using the EIR method and is recognized under
Interast and similar axpanse. VWhen the hedged itern is derecognised, the unamorised fair value
adjustment is recognised immediately under Qther aperaling meomeadiass).

h)  Statement of cash flows

Staterment of cash flows has been prepared using the indirect method, Cash and cash equivalents
congigt of cash in banks.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, adustments for net profit from financing activifies are non-
Cash items which include the effects of foreign exchange results, fair value hedge basis adustments and
amortisation of delt issued and other bomowing using the effective inferest rate method.

The movement in the Defarred fax assefs is included in the line itermn Others while the movement in the
income tax receivablel/payable) is included in the line items Decreasafincreass) in dher oparaling
assels and Increase in cperating labifiies. Both these line items are preserted under Net cash flows
framsused in oosraling activibies.

] Taxation

Current tax agsets and labilities for the curment and prior yvears are measured as the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilties are recognised for temporary difference between the carrying
amounts in the statement of financial position and the tax base. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
difference can be ulilised.

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted as of the statement of financial position date,

24  Segment reporting
The Comparny has organised its business activities based on its products and services. As the Company
anly engages in one operating segment of financing actvity, the gross and net assets and profitioss

before taxation as presented in the face of the financial statements are related to the same segment. The
majonty of the debt is issued to Japanese investors. All loan payables, loan receivables and dervatives,
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except for dervatives embedded in some of the medium term notes, are transacted with the Nomura
Group.

25 Changes in accounting policies and estimates

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the
adoption of the following amendments to standards that has become effective and are relevant to the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016:

The amenc:imrrts apphr tn mntnbutlnns. fmrn E:mpluj.rees Dr third parties to defined benefit plans. This
standard is endorsed by EU and effective for annual penods beginming on o after 1 February 2015
with early adoption penmitted.

The amended standard did not have a matenial impact on the financial position, perfarmance and
notes to the financial statements of the Company.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle
A collection of amendments to IFRSs is issued in response to issues addressed during 2010-2012
and 2011-2013 cycle. Cne of the amendments to IFRS 13 and the amendment to IFRS 1 only affect
the Basis for Conclusions for the respective standards and, therefore, are effective immediately. The
other amendments are endorsed by EU and effective from 1 January 2015 (2011-2013 cycle) and 1
February 2015 (2010-2012 cycle) either prospectively or retrospectively,

These amendments to IFRSs did not have a matenal impact on the financial pasition, performance
and notes to the financial statements of the Compary.

Changes in accounting estimates
The accounting estimates applied in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with
those applied in the preparation of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, except
for own credit agjustment ("OCA").

An OCA Is calculated and applied to financial liabilifies designated at fair value through profit or loss
based on mavements in the credit spread of the Momura Group. The valuation methodology used to
determine this adjustment was refined during the year ended 31 March 2016 by incorporating certain
additional term features in Momura Group's credit spreads, which are a key valuation input used to
determine the amount of the adjustment. This change in methodology did not have a significant
impact on the results of the year ended 31 March 2016,

28 Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the following new standards and
amendments to the existing standards and interpretations that are likely to be applicable to the
Company have been issued by the Intemational Accourting Standards Board ("IASEY) but not yet
effective for the year endad 21 March 2016:

IFRS 8 Fi i |

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments includes requirements for recognition and measurement, and hedge
accourting. The aim is to form a complete replacement far 1AS 38 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. IFRS 9 was originally issued in Movember 2009, and finalized in July 2014

IFRS 9 does not reguire the restatement of comparative-period financial staterments for the initial
application of the classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 3, but requires modified
disclosures on transtion to IFRS 9. The Company 15 in the process of assessing the effects as these
requirements are different from the requirements under the existing 145 39 rules. Financial liabilities
that are currently designated at fair value through profit or loss will have their changes in own credit
risk recognized directly into other comprehensive income.
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IFRS 9 s effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Januany 2018. The Company is currently
evaluating the potential impact of IFRS 9 on its financial position and performance. The Company
expects that IFRS 9 will have consequences for the classification and measurement of its financial
assets and liabilities. This standard has not been endorsed by the ELL

IERS 15 Pevenye from Contracts with Custemers

In May 2014, the 1ASE issued IFRS 15, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, which specifies
how and when revenue is recognised, but does not impact income recognition related to financial
instruments in scope of IFRS SMAS 38, IFRS 15 replaces several other IFRS standards and
interpretations that currently govern revenue recognition under IFRS and provides a single, principle
based five-step model to be applied to all comtracts with customers. The standard also requires
entities to provide users of financial statements with more informative and relevant discloswres.

IFRS 15 will be effective for annual percds beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early adoption
permitted. The Company does not expect this new standard to have a material impact on its financial
position and peformance. This standard has not been endarsed by the EU

Annual Im IFE 12-2014 I

A collection of amendments to IFRSs, in response fo issues addressed during the 2012-2014 cycle.
The amendments are endorsed by EL and effectve for annual perncds beginning on or after 1
January 2016 with early adoption possible.

Based on assessments made, these amendments to IFRSs are not expected to have a material
impact an the financial position, pedormance and nates to the financial statements of the Company

3. Interest income and expense

For the year ended
March 20186 March 2015
Millions af JFY Millions of JFY
Interest and similar income
Loans and advances to affiliates (Mate 26) 24 7685 30,21
Cash collateral (Mote 13) 256 67
Cash and cash equivalents (Mote 28) - 2
Cither - 2
25,022 30,292
For the year ended
March 2018 March 2015
Millions of JFY Millians of JPY
Interest and similar expense
Debt issued and other borrowing {1,270) {14,948)
Cash collateral received (Mate 20) (3) (10)
Borrowing from affiiates (Mote 26) (3,229) -
(4,502) {14, 958)

Main reason af the increase in Net inferest income is the changes in market conditions of interest, such
as interest rate gap between bomowing rate and lending rate where currencies are different.

For a hybrd instrument where an embedded derivative is separated and associated host is determined
(Refer to Mote 2.3 for details), the derivative is recorded at its initial fair value and the residual is
recognised as a host contract under Debt ssued and other barrowing and accounted for at amortised
cosl. PL arising from such embedded derivative at initial recognition is defemred and amortised over the
penod of such host contract and may be recognised as negative expense under Inferast and similar
axpense. Megative expenses recognised from the premium amortisation of such host contracts resulted
in increase of Net inferest income for the year endad 31 March 2016 compared to the year ended 31
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March 2013, The amount of such negative expenses included in Inferest and similar expense was JFY
8,970 million for the year ended 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015 JPY 6,028 million).

4. Net fee and commission expense

For the year ended
March 2016 March 2015
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Guarantee fee paid (Mote 26) (754) (778)
Commitmert fee received (Mote 28) - _18
EE (762)
5. Net trading loss
For the year ended
March 2016 March 2015
Millions of JPY Millians of JPY

Met trading loss on derivative financial
instruments (674,804) (93,650)
Met foreign exchange losses 108 (HE6)

(674.695) (24, 245)

The Compary manages the nisks ansing from fluctuations such as in forgign curency exchanges and
interest rates with the u=e of financial denvatives. The gains and losses on financial denvatives, which are
held for risk management purposes to offsst these fluchuabions, are included in Net trading loss. The
movement in Nef frading loss partly offsets the movement in Net gain on financial liabiities designated at
fair value through proft or loss (Note 8) for the hedging of financial liabilties designated at fair value
through profit or loss and the movement in Mat inferest sncome (Mote 3) for the hedging of financial
products ather than financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss,

For hybrid instruments where the embedded derivatives are separated and measured at fair value, the
gains and losses on hedging denvatives are offset by the gains and losses on embedded denvatives. For
the instruments which are not bifurcated, the gains and losses on hedging derivatives may cause
fluctuation in the recagnition of gains and losses in Nef frading loss,

The vast majority of the increase in Net frading loss for the year ended 31 March 2016 compared to
the year ended 31 March 2015 is resulting from the hedging derivatives associated to the financial
liatilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, This increase is offset by a coresponding
increase in the Net gain on financial iabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (Mote 6),

Risk management, for information regarding the nature and extert of the Company's dealing with
financial instruments, is disclosed in Note 22
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6. MNet gain on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

For the year ended
March 20186 March 2015
Millions af JPY Millians of JPY
Met gain on finangial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss 659 116 893,857
659,116 93,857

Interest expenses, gains and losses arising from changes in fair value and transaction costs
associated to the financial liabilities desigrated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised under
Net gain on financial fabilities designated af fair value through profit or loss, except for the currency
translation effect which is included in Nef frading foss.

The Company calculates and applies OCA based on movements in the credit spread of the Momura
Group. Notes issued by the Company are guarartead by NHI (Refer to Mote 18 and Mote 26) therefore
the Comparny utilizes the credit spread of the Momura Group for calculation of OCA. The impact of
changes in own credit risk included under Net gain on financial fabiities designated at fair value
through profit or loss is JPY 2,573 million gain for the year ended 31 March 2016 (JPY 13 million gain for
the year ended 31 March 2015) The majonty of this change s stermming from new financial liataliies
designated at fair value through profit or loss duning the current reporting period.

This increase Net gain on financial iabiities designated at fair value through profit or foss is offset by

an increase in Net frading loss (MNote 5) resulting from the hedging dervatives associated to the
financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss,

7. Other operating income

For the year ended
March 2018 March 2015
Millions of JFY Millions of JFY
Redemption gains/(losses) {11) 126
Others 0 5
19 132
8. Salaries and social charges
For the year ended
March 2018 March 2015
Millions of JFY Millions of JFY
Salaries {72) (66)
Pension premium (6) {10y
Social charges and welfare {10 &)
(B8] (85)

9. Number of employees

The Company had ten (10} employees as of 31 March 2016 (2015: 8). Four (4) of the 10 employees were
working part time as of 31 March 2016 (2015:4).
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10. General and administrative expenses

For the year ended
March 2016 March 2015

Millions of JPY Millions of JPY

Advance pricing arrangement
adjustrnent (MNote 26) (5,162) (8,870)
Sub-contractor fees (Motes 26) (126) (85)
Taxes other than income tax (567) (234)
Professional fees (123) [242)
Administrative (Mote 26) (20) (28)
Others {59) 513
(6,057) (3,628)

Advance pricing arrangement

Advanced pricing agreement for the avoidance of double taxation in the Metherlands and in Japan has
expired on 31 March 2012, On 30 November 2012, the Company filed a request to Dutch tax
authorities for @ unilateral advance pricing agreement (the “Unilateral APA"). Dulch tax authorities
approved the Unilateral APA on 4 April 2014, The Unilateral APA applies exclusively to the period
from 1 Aprl 2013 up to and including 31 March 2017, with retroactive effect to 1 Aprl 2012, For the
years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2015 NHI and the Company agreed to selfle the
adjustment in line with the terms of Unilateral APA. Consequently, for the year ended 31 March 2016
JPY 5,182 million (31 March 2015 JPY 8 870 million) adjustment amount payable to NHI is included
in the above account line item advance prcing arrangement adjustment,
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11. Taxation

The components of the taxation benefit for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015 are as
fodlenw:

Faor the year ended
March 2018 Mareh 2015
Millions of JFY Millions of JFY
Current fax:
Current incame fax [385) (395)
Adustiment in respect of current income tax
of priar years - -
Deferred tax:
Relating to temporary differences 896 (724)
Taxation (expense)/benefit 500 {1,118}
___For the year ended
March 2018 March 2015
Milliors of JPY Millions of JPY
Prafitilloss) before tax (1,940) 4,602
At Dutch statutory income tax rate of 25% 485 (1,151}
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of
prior years - -
Effect of permanent difference between taxable
income and accounting profit 15 3z
Taxation (expense)benefit 500 (1,119}

The nominal tax rate for the fiscal year ended 31 March 20M6 is 23% (2015:25%) while the effective tax
rafe is 25.77% (2015 24.32%)

The maovements in the income tax (payable)receivable and deferred tax assels are as follow:

For the year ended
March 2016 March 2015

Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Income tax (payable)receivable
Beginning balance {5) (48]
Fayment 457 467
Charged to income (385) (395)
Cther movements {15) (25)
Ending balance 31 (2]
Deferred tax assets
Beginning balance 1,639 2,363
Increase related to temporary differences 896 (724)
Ending balance 2,335 1,639

Deferred tax assets are recognised for ternparary differences between the carrying amourts in the
statement of financial position and the tax base. The majority of the defemred tax assets of the
Compary perain to the valuation of the dervative financial instruments and financial hatilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. Derivative financial instruments'

As of
March 2016 March 2015
Millions of JFY Milliors of JBY
Positive fair values
Foreign exchange related derivatives 10,657 15,073
Interest rate denivatives 57,985 56,654
Equity derivatives 44 322 10,484
Commodity derivatives 2,553 385
Credit derivatives 3,159 3,059
118,716 85 655
Megative fair values
Faoreign exchange related derivatives 24,617 18,783
Interest rate denvatives a4 FF7T 49,534
Equity derivatives 85 274 11,685
Commedty derivatives 4,780 99,844
Credit derivatives 3,159 3,083
142117 183,030

Abowve figures in tables consist of current and non-current derivative financial assets and derivative

financial hiabilities.

As of
March 2018 March 2015
Millions of JBY Millicres of JEY
Motional amounts

Foreign exchange related derivatives 527,597 839 867
Interest rate dernvatives 1,541 831 1,812,580
Equity derivatives 489,880 406,081
Commaodty dervatives 80,235 178,500
Credit derivatives 281,132 220,461
25920675 3, 457 458

All the above figures in tables include bifurcated embedded derivatives.

All foreign exchange related dervatives and other derivatives mentioned above, except for bifurcated
embedded derivatives, are transacted with the MNomura Group.

The Compary uses derivatives for hedging purpesas in the management of its own assel and liability
partfolios. This enables the Company to mitigate the market nisk and interest rate risk arising from its
assets and liabilities,

Majarity of the decrease and increase in both the positive and negative fair values of denvative financial
ingruments coresponds to the decrease and increase in the positive and negative fair value of hedging
derivatives due to changes in the market conditions.

When calculating the fair value of derivatives, the credit and debit valuation adjustments are taken into

account. The credit and debit valuation adjustments are minimal as the Comparny exchanges cash
collateral (Motes 15 and 20).

3 Each derpsative classificabion includes derivatives referancng muRiphe rsk components, For eample, interest rabe contracts
include complex derivalives referencing inberes! rate risk as well as foreign exchange risk
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. Cash and cash equivalents

The balance only comprises of cash in banks which iz unrestricted for disposal.

16. Other assets
As of
March 2016 March 2015
Millicns of JFY Millions of JPY
Cash collateral (Motes 22 and 26) 118,050 104,730
Others 2,439 1,940
120,488 106,670

Under International Swaps and Dervatives Association (1S0DA") Credit Support Annex signed with
related parties, the Company places cash collaferal which is restricted for disposal to denvative
courterparties related to denvative transactions. Others mainly include accrued interest income.,

16. Issued and paid-up capital and reserve

The authorized share capital consists of 315,000 ordinary shares of Euro ("EUR") 454 par value per
share. The issued and paid-up share capital comprises of 113,000 shares with EUR 454 par value per
share.

Details of the issued and paid-up capital are as follows:

As of
March 2016 March 2015
Issued and paid-up capital at historical cost
(JPY Milliors) 8 402 B8 402
lssued and paid-up shares (Thousands) 113 113
Par value per share (EUR) 454 454
Issued shares at par value (EUR Thousands) 51,302 51,302
Exchange rate (ELIR-JFPY) 1280520 1288072
Issued and paid-up capital (JFY Millions) & 569 FEE
Details of the reserve are as follows:
As of
March 2016 March 2015
Millions of JBY Millions of JPY
Issued and paid-up capital at historical cost 8402 & 402
lzzued and paid-up capital 6,569 6613
Translation difference 1,833 1789

As required by Article 2:373 paragraph S of the Dutch Civil Code the Issued and paid-up capital
account is measured using the shares issued and paid-up at par and translated using the closing rate
from EUR to JPY as of the statemernt of financial position date. The difference between the historical
cost and the carrying amount of the issued and paid-up capital as of the staterment financial position
date is recorded under Resernve account.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. Dividends paid

Mo dividend was declared or paid during the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

18. Debt issued and other borrowing

a.  Mon-current debt issued and other borrowing

For the year ended
March 2016 March 2015
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Beginning balance 1,075,548 1,487 816
Issues 276,970 322,339
Redemptions (320,650) (654 663)
Reclassifications to current liabilities (141,732) (103,683)
Other movements (B7,549) 13,745
Ending balance B22 557 1,075 548
b Current debt issued and other borrowing
For the year ended
March 2016 March 2015
Milliors of JFY Millions of JFY
Beginning balance 150,425 568,154
Issues 382,803 97,700
Redemptions (505,556) {B17,449)
Reclassificatiors from non-current liabilites 141,752 103,589
Other movements 46 901 {1,669)
Ending balance 216,325 130,425

In the above tables, Other movements are mainly related to the effects of the foreign exchange results
and amortisation of debt issued and other borrowing using the EIR method,

All notes issued are guaranteed either by NHI anly or by both NHI and Momura Secunties Co., Ltd. (Refer
o Mote 26),

19. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

As of
March 2016 March 2015
Millions of JPY Milligns of JFY
Bonds and medium-term notes G654 663 417,586
G54 663 417 586

Above figures in tables consist of current and non-current financial habiliies designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

The impact of changes in OCA (Refer to Note 6) is JFY 2,573 million gain dunng the current reporting
peried and the cumulative balance is JPY 1,290 million gain as of 31 March 2016 (2015 JPY 13
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

millicn gain dunng the prior reporting period and the comulative balance was JPY 1,283 million loss as of
31 March 2015).

The difference between the carrying amount and the contractually due amourt for the financial

lfabilities designated at fair valle through profit o loss is JPY 17,331 million as of 31 March 2016
{2015: JPY 3,702 million) .

20. Other liabilities

As of
Hiurch 2016 March 2015
Millions of JFY Millions of JPY
Cash collateral received (Motes 22 and 26) 7,930 5,910
Cthers 7,923 11,140
15,853 17,050

Under ISDA Credit Support Annex signed with related paries, the Compary receives cash colaferal
which is restricted for disposal from denvative counterparties related to derivative transactions. Ofhers
mainty include accrued interest expense and other acorued expenses.

21. Commitments and contingent liabilities

The Compary has JFY 223,600 milion unsettied loan commitments ta NHI as of 31 March 2016 (2015
JPY 262 875 million).

22. Risk management

The Company's nsk management activities involve both the assessment and transfer of cerdain nsks
which the Compary must manage. The mos! important types of risk are market risk, credit sk, ligquidity
risk and operational nsk. Market nsk includes curmrency risk, price risk, and interest rate sk

The Company's primary objective is to act as a financing vehicle for the Nomura Group. To this end,
the Company issues debt with retuns linked to a vanety of different indices including but not limited to
equitios, interast rate, foreign exchange, credit and commodities, The Compary actively manages the
resultant nsk using dervative financial instruments with the intention of eliminating significant market
risk arising from such instruments. The Comparny transacts these derivative instruments solely with
other entities within the Nomura Group.

The Company's financial instruments include oan advances, cash collateral deposited to or receved
from other entities within the Momura Group, debt issued and other borrowing, financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss and dervatives,

15k A I

Mormura Group has determined the maximum level and types of risk that it is willing to assume in
pursuit of its strategic objectives and business plan and has articulated this in its Risk Appetite
Statement. This document is jointly submitted by the Chief Risk Officer ("CRO") and the Chief
Financial Officer (“"GFO") to the Executive Management Board ("EMBE") for approval.

The Risk Appetite Statement provides an aggregated view of risk and includes capital adequacy and
balance sheet measures, liquidity risk, market and credit risk, operational risk, and model risk, and
consists of quantitative metrics and qualitative statements. It is subject to regular monitanng and
breach escalation as appropriate by the owner of the relevant risk appetite statement.
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Momura Group's Risk Appefite Statement is required to be reviewed annually by the EMB but it is
reviewed on an ad-hoc basis if necessary, and must specifically be reviewed following ary significant
changes in Momura Group's strategy. Risk appetite underpins all additional aspects of Momura
Group's risk management framewark.

lobal Risk M MM I

Upon delegation from the EMB, the Group Integrated Risk Management Committee ("GIRMC")
deliberates on or determines impartant matters concerning integrated risk management of Nomura
Group to assure the sound and effective management of its businesses. The GIRMC establishes
Momura Group's risk appetite and a framework of integrated risk management consistert with
Momura Group's risk appetite. The GIRMC supervises Momura Group's risk management by
establishing and operating its risk managemerit framework, The GIRMC reparts the status of key risk
management issues and any other matters deemed necesszary by the committee chairman to the
Board of Director and the EMB.

In addition, the GIRMC, upon delegation from the EMB, has established the Risk Management Policy,
describing Momura Group's overall risk management framework including the fundamental risk
management principles followed by Nomura Group.

Upon delegation from the GIRMC, the GRMC deliberates on or determines, based on strategic nsk
allocation and risk appetite determined by the GIRMC, important matters concerning market, credit or
reputational nsk management of MNomura Group in order to assure the sound and effective
management of Momura Group's businesses. The GRMC reports to the GIRMC the status of
discussions at its meelings and any other matters as deemed necassary by the committee chairman.

The Company’'s qualitative and guantitative risk management

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from fluctuations in the value of agssets and liabilities (including off
balance sheet items) due to fluctuations in market risk factors (interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
prices of securities and others), Effective management of this risk requires the ability to analyse a
complex and constantly changing global market ervironment, identify problematic trends and ensure
that appropriate action is taken in a timely manner, The Company seeks to minimise the market risks
by entering into dervative agreements 1o economically hedge the exposwres in its loans and medium
term notes. The maturity structure of the derivatives comesponds with the maturity of the medium term
notes being hedged.

Interast Rale and Equily Price Risk

It is the palicy of the Company to hedge interest rate and equity price exposures via the use of interest
rate derivatives, cross currency derivatives or equity swaps.

The Company raises funding with short-term or long-term borrowings through the issuance of medium
term notes. The Compary funds the desired currencies at both fixed and floating rates of interest and
then uses both interest rate and currency derivatives to generate the desired interest rate hedge
profile. This will irvolve matching the coupon dates on both the assets and liabilities where relevant,

Applying the above hedging policy on interest rate exposure, the Company does not have a significant
interest rate exposure as of 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2013,

Currancy Exposurg

Currency expasures are compnsed of the monetary assets and monetary liabilites of the Company
that are not denominated im the functional currency of the Comparny. All material net currency
exposure ansing from activities of the Company is actively hedged using foreign exchange related
derivatives andfor currency dernvatives.

It is the policy of the Company not to trade currency exposure; therefore, all currency derivative
transactions are entered into with the intention of hedging only.
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Applying the above hedging policy on currency exposure, the Company does not have a significant
currency exposure as of 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015,

Credit Risk

Cradit nsk management

Credit risk is the rsk of loss arising from an obligor or counterparty's default, insobeency or
administrative proceeding which results in the obligor's failure to meet its contractual obligations in
accordance with agreed terms. This includes both on and off-balance sheet expasuras. It is also the
risk of loss arnsing through & credt wvaluation adjustment associated with deterioration in the
creditworthiness of a courterparty.

As the Company's financial instruments are traded exclusively with the Nomura Group, credit risk is
minimised.

Cradit quality of financial assets

The Company considered the credit rating of the Nomura Group as the same credit rating received by
MHI from Standard & Poor's International LLC which is BBB+, As of the Managing Directors’ reparting
date, there has been no change in the aforementioned credit rating.

The Company has no financial assets that are either past due or impaired.

Cradit risk axposine

The table below shows the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk as of the statement of
financial position date, Certain off-balance sheet instruments which expose the Company to a nsk of
loss due to default by the parties underlying these contracts are also disclosed.

As of
March 2016 March 2015
Milliars of JPY Millions of JPY
Derivative financial assets (MNote 13) 118,716 85,655
Cash and cash equivalents 270 250
Oither debtors (Mote 12) 1,978,371 1,671,284
Cash collateral receved (Note 20) {7,930) (5,910)
Total exposure to credit risk 2,000,427 1,751,579

Cradlit Risk Mitigation Techmigues

As mentioned previously, the Company enters into [SDA master agreements or equivalent
agreements (called "Master Netting Agreements’) to mitigate its exposure to credit loss, The impact of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabiliies which are subject to these agreements is not
reflected in the statement of financial position,

Impaired financial assels
The Company assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired at
each statement of financial position date as described in Note 2.3 e) above.

All lcans are transacted with the Momura Group. Mo impairment less on loans has been recognised for
the year ended 31 March 2018 or the prior periods
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Liguidity Risk

Liguidity Risk Management

The Momura Group defines liquidity nisk as the risk of loss arising from difficulty in securing the
necessarny funding or from a significantly higher cost of funding than normal levels due to deterioration
of the Momura Group's creditworthiness or deterioration in market conditions. This risk could arise
from Momura-specific or market-wide events such as inability to access the secured or unsecured
debt markets, a deterioration in Momura Group credit ratings, a faillure to manage unplanned changes
in funding requirements, a failure to liquidate assets quickly and with minimal loss in value, or
changes in regulatory capital restrictions which may prevent the free flow of funds between different
Momura group ertities. Liquidity risk managemeant policy is based on liguidity risk formulated by the
EMB. Momura Group's liquidity risk management, under market-wide stress and in addition, under
stress to Nomura Group credit, seeks to ensure enough confinuous liquidity to meet all funding
requirements and unsecured debt obligations across one year and one month periods respectively
without raising funds through unsecured funding or the liquidation of assets.

The Nomura Group has in place a number of Liquidity Risk Management frameworks that enable the
Momura Group to achieve its primary liquicity objective. These frameworks include (1) Centralized
Control of Residual Cash and Maintenance of Liquidity Pertfolio; (2) Utilization of Unencumbered
Assels as Part of Liguidity Portfolio; (3) Appropriate Funding and Diversification of Funding Sources
and Matunbies Commensurate with the Composition of Assets, (4) Management of Credit Lines to
Momura Group Enfities; (S) Implementation of Liquidity Stress Tests;, and (6) Contingency Funding
Flan.

The EMB has the authority to make decisions conceming the Momura Group liquidity management.
The CFC of MHI has the operational authority and responsibility over the Momura Group’s liquidity
management based on decisions made by the EMB.

The Comparny is fully integrated into the Momura Group's Liguidity Risk Management frameworks
given its primary role as the funding vehicle of the Momura Group,

The maturity profile and sources of furding of the Company are actively monitered and managed by
Global Treasury of the Nomura Group to avoid any concentration of funding by maturity and souwrce.
The distribution of sources of funding and their maturity profile are actively managed in order fo
enswe access to funds and to avoid a concentration of funding at any one time or from any one
Bource,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operational Risk

The Momura Group defines operational risk (the "Cperational Risk™) as the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external events, It excludes
strategic risk (the risk of loss as a result of poor strategic business decisions), but Includes the risk of
breach of legal and regulatory requirements, and the risk of damage to Momura Group's reputation if
caused by an operational risk.

The Thres Lines of Defance

The Momura Group adopts the industry standard “Three Lines of Defence” for the management of
aperational risk, comprising the following elemerts:

1) 1st Line of Defence: The business which owns and manages its nsks

2) 2nd Line of Deferce. The Operational Risk Management ("ORM®) function, which defines and
co-ordinates the operational risk strategy and framework and provides challenge to the 1st Line of
Defence

3) 3rd Line of Defence; Internal and External Audit, who provide independent assurance

Operational Risk Management Framework

An Operational Risk Management Framework has been established in order to allow Nomura Group
to identify, assess, manage, monitor and report on operational risk The GIRMC, with delegated
autharity from the EMB has formal oversight over the management of operational risk

The ORM framework consists of 1) Infrastructure of the framework, 2) Products and Services and 3)
Outputs. The Compary is fully integrated into the Momura Group's ORM frameswaork.

EBelow are the measures taken to control the main operational risks which form Products and Services
inthe ORM framework:

+ Rizk and Control Self-Assessment: The process used by business units o identify and assess the
operational risks to which they are exposed, the controls in place to mitigate risks, and action plans to
further reduce risk.

+ Scenarno Analysis: Process to identify and assess high impact, low probability tail events.

+ Event Reporting: Process to obtain information on and learn from actual events impacting the
Company and relevant external events. A key step is to identify appropriate action plans to prevent or
mitigate future occurrence of events.

© Key Risk Indicators: Metrics which allow monitoring of cerain key operational risks and trigger
appropriate responses as thresholds are breached.

23. Fair Value
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Comparison of the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of current financial assets and current financial liabilities measwred at amortised
cost including borrowing from affiiales faily approximate their fair values, since they are short-term in
nature and contain limited credit nisk. Below tables include comparison of the carrying amounts and
fair values of non-current loans and advances to affiliates and non-current debt issued and other

barrowing.

As of March 2016

Carrying
amount Fair value
Level 2 Level 3
Millions of  Millions of
Millions of JPY JPY JBY
Loans and advances to affiliates 243147 236 257 -
Debt issued and other borrowing B22 557 760 688 1,529
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As of March 2015

Carrying
amaount Fair value
Level 2 Level 3
Millions of  Millions of
Millions af JFY JEY JEY
Loans and advances to affiliates 440 204 445 458 -
Debt issued and other barrowing 1,075,548 1,012,828 1,430

For financial assets carried at amortized cost which have a maturity of more than one year from the
statement of financial position date, fair value is determined based on discounted cash flows using the
prevailing rates from the active markets, Credit risk and seniority of the relevant loans are taken into
consideration in determining the fair value of the loan

For financial lakilities carmed at amorised cost having a maturty of more than one year from the
statement of financial position date, fair value is determined based on price quotations at the
statement of financial position date. These quotations are based on techrigues for which all inputs
that have a significant effect on the fair value are observable either directly or indirectly, as well as
technigues which use inputs not based on observable market data.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The following tables presant information about the Company’s financial assets and financial hiabilities

measured at fair value within the fair value hierarchy on a recurring basis, based on the transparency
af inputs into the valuation techniques used by the Company to determine such fair values,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reconciliation of recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

The following table shows a reconciliation of all movements in the fair value of financial instruments
categonsad within Level 3 batween the beginning balances and the ending balances as of the reporting

period.

March 216
Financial liabilties
designated at fair
Derivative Dervative value threugh
financial assets  financial liabdibes profit or loss
Milkons of JPY Millions af JPY Millions af JPY
Beginning balance 41,420 41,649 17,326
Total gains/(lessas) in the
staternent of comprehensive
income 3,78 523 448
Wew Issues - - 27 850
Settlements (6,563) (8,810} (3,336)
Transfers in 1,035 1,218 6,450
Transfers out {1,024) {1,147) (10,258)
Ending balance 38,649 38,142 38,238
Total unrealised gains/(losses)
for the pericd included in the
statement of comprehensive
income for instruments held at
the end of the reporting period 15,220 {14,405) 157
March 2015
Derivative Derivative Financial liabilities
financial assets  financial liabiites  designated at fair
value through
prafit of less
Milbors of JPY Millions af JPY Millions of JPY
Beginning balance 78,702 79,797 .
Total gains/{lesses) in the
statement of comprehensive
incceme’ (28 565) (27.687) (330
M Issues - - 17,750
Settlements {11,323) {10,532) (84)
Transfers in 385 841 .
Transfers out (7E0) TE0) -
Ending balance 41i42ﬂ 41,549 17,326
—
Total unrealised gainsi{losses)
for the period included in the
statement of comprehensive
income for instruments held at
the end of the reporting period 2,250 (1.884) 424

1} For assels, positive balances represent gains, negative belances represent |osses. For Babilies, positive balances represent

losses, negative balances represent gains.

123/210



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
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Total gains and losses on finrancial dervatives included in the above table are included under Nef
fracling loss in the statement of comprehensive income. Total gains and losses on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or less included in the above table are included under Net gain an
financial abities designated at fair value through profit or loss in the statement of comprehenisive
INCOIme.

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, there wera no financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised at fair value under Level 1. Thus, no transfers occurmed between Level 1 and Level 2

The Compamny assumes that all transfers of financial instruments from one level to another level within
the fair value hisrarchy occur at the baginning of the relevant period inwhich the transfer takes place.
Amounts reported above therefore represent the fair value of the financial instrumerts at the
beginning of the relevant quarter when the transfer was made.

Valuation techniques

The Comparmy has only overthe-counter ("CTC") derivatives, including bifurcated embedded
derivatives, which are valued using internal models using market transactions and ather market
evidence whenever possible, including market-based inputs to models, model calibration to market
clearing transactions, broker or dealer quatations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels
of price transparency. Valuation techniques include simple discounted expected cash flow techmgques,
Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo simulations. OTC derivatives, including bifurcated embedded
derivatives, are classified within Level 2 of the fair value heerarchy when all of the significant inputs
can be comoborated to manket evidence.

Derivatives that are valued using models with significant unobservable inputs such as correlation,
long-dated volatility, or other unobsenvable inputs are classified within Level 3. Examples of derivatives
classified as Level 3 by the Company include exolic interest rate derivatives, exolic foreign exchange
derivatives, exotic equity derivatives, exotic derivatives including a8 combination of interest rate, foreign
exchange and equity nsks and certain other transactions including long-dated or exotic credit
derivatives.

Valuation techniques may rely on parameters which are not observable in the market due to an
absence of equivalert, current, market transactions or observable market data, These valuation
technigues are based on assumptions. As a result, the fair value calculated using these valuation
technigues will change if the underlying assumplions change.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, a total of JPY 1,035 million of financial assets (2015: JPY 366
million) and a total of JFY 1,319 million of financial liabilities (20132 JPY 841 million) were transfered
into Level 3. On the financial assets side the transferred amount comprised primarily JPY 947 millicn
of interest rate swaps (2015 JPY 283 million) which were transferred into Level 3 because certain
volatilities and comelations became unobservable or the significance of unobservable parameters
increased. On the financial liabilities side the transferred amounts comprsed primarly JEY 1,231
million of interest rate swaps (2015: JPY 758 million) which were transferred into Level 3 because
certain volatilities and correlations became unobservable or the significance of unobservabile
parameters increased.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, a total of JPY 1,024 million of financial assets (2015 JPY TEO
million} and a tolal of JFY 1,147 million of financial liabilities (2015: JFY 780 million) were transferred
out of Level 3. On the financial assets side the transferred amount comprised primarily JPY 431
million of interest rate swaps and JPY 572 million of equity swaps (2015: JPY 422 million and JPY
309 million, respectively) which were transferred out of Level 3 because certain volatiities and
correlations became observable or the significance of unobservable parameters decreased. On the
financial liabilities side the transferred amounts comprsed primarily JPY 573 million of interest rate
swaps and JPY 372 million of eguity swaps (2015 JPY 422 million and JPY 309 million, respectively)
which were transferred out of Level 3 because certain volatilities and cormelations became observable
ar the significance of unobservable parameters decreased.
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Valuation processes

The Company is fully integrated into the Momura Group's governance framework which mandates
determination or validation of a fair value measurement by control and support functions independent
of the businesses assuming the risk of the financial instrument in order to ensure the appropriateness
of any fair value measurement of a financal instrument used within these financial statements
including those classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy

The functions within Momura Group for either defining, implementing or maintaining valuation poelicies
and procedures are as follows:

+ The Product Control Waluations Group ("PCVYGET) within Momura's Finance Depardment has
primary responsibility to determine and implement valuation policies and procedures in
connection with determination of fair value measurements. In particular, this group will ensure
that valuation policies are documented for each type of financial instrument. Momura Group's
businesses price the financial instruments of the Company, the PCVG independently verifies or
valdates these pnces. In the event of a difference in opimon of where the estimate of fair value
requires judgement, the valuation used within these financial statements is made by senior
managers independent of the trading businesses. This group reports to the Global Head of
Product Control and ultimately to the CFO of Momura Group,

« The Accounting Policy Group within Nomura's Finance Department defines the Group's
accounting policies and procedures, including those associated with determination of fair value.
This group reports to the Global Head of Accounting Pelicy and ultimately to the CFO of Nomuwa
Group, and

+  The Global Madel Validation Group "MVG") within Momura's Risk Managemeant Department
validates the appropriateness and consistency of pricing models used to determine fair value
measurements independently of those who design and build the models. The group repons to
the CRO.

Independant price verificalion processes

The key abjective of the independent price verification processes within Nomura Group is to venfy the
appropriateness of fair value measurements applied to all financial instruments within Momura Group.
In applying these control processes, observable inputs are used whenever possible and when
unabsenyable inputs are necessary, the processes seek to ensure the valuation technigue and inputs
are appropriate, reasonable and consistertly applied.

The independent price verification processes aim to verify the fair value of all positions to external
levels on a regular basis. The process involves obltaining data such as trades, marks and prices from
irternal and external sources and examining the impact of marking the internal positions at the
external prices. Margin disputes within the collateral process are also investigated to determine if
there is any impact on valuations.

Where third-party pricing information sourced from brokers, dealers and consensus picing sevices is
used as part of the price verification process, consideration is given as to whether that information
reflects actual recent market transactions or prices at which transactions invalving identical or similar
financial instruments are currently executable. If such transactions or prices are not available, the
financial instrument will generally be classified in Level 3.

Where there is a lack of observable market information around the inputs used In a fair value
measurement, then the PCYGE and the MVG will assess the reascnableness of inputs used,
considenng available information including comparable products, surfaces, curves and past trades.
Additional valuation adjustments may be taken for the uncertainty in the inputs used, such as
correlation and where appropriate trading desks may be asked to execute trades to evidence market
levels.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS

Quantitative information regarding significant uncbservable inputs and assumptions

The following table presents information about the significant unobservable inputs and assumptions
umed for financial instruments. classified as Level 3. These financial instruments also typically include
observable valuation inputs (Le. Level 2 valuation inputs) which are not included in the table and are
also often hedged using financial instruments which are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The following table shows valuation techniques and inputs wsed in the fair value measurements of Level
3 financial assats and financial lizbiities:

Fair value as of

March 2016
Millions of JEY
Significant Range of
Valuation unobservable valuation
Assets Liabilities  technigue{s) inputs inputs'™
Forewgn exchange
related dervatives 1,619 1,619 DCFIOption Volatilities 16.70-17. 1%
kadel
Interest rate dervatves 36,967 36,460 DCFIOption Interest rates 0.07-274%
Model Volatilities 13.84-91.39%
Correlations -0.57-0,97
{-1.0to 1.0}
Equity dervatves 28 28 DCFIOption Dividend yield 1.17-.4.47%
Model Volatilities 21 87-46.05%
Correlations 0.61-0.76
{-1.0to 1.0)
Cradit darivatives 35 35 DCF Correlations 075075
{-1.0tc 1.0)
Financial liakilities - 38238 DCFICption Interest rates 0.10-2.74%
designated at fair value Madel Velatilites 13.84-91.39%
through profit or loss Correlations 0.35-0.87
{-1.0tc 1.0)
Tatal 38,649 76,380
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Fair value as of

March 2015
Millicns of JP'Y
Significant Range of
Valuation unobservable valuation
Assels Liabilittes  technique{s) inputs inputs"™’
Foreign exchange
related derivatives 66 66 DCFOption Volatilities 15.05-15.93%
Maodel
Interest rate derivatives 38,501 39,730 DCFIOption Interest rates 0.79-3.20%
Model Volatilities 13.73-31.52%
Correlations -0.01-0.85
{(-1.0to 1.0)
Equity derivatives 1,814 1,814 DCFiOption  Dividend yield 0.00-5. 73%
model Volatilities 16.27-47.33%
Correlations -0.75-0.
{(-1.0t0 1.0)
Credit dervatives 10 30 DCF Correlations 0.75-0.75%
{=1.0te 1.0
Financial habilities - 17,326 DCFIOption Interest rates 0.45-2.88%
designated at fair value hMadel Vilatilities 14.05-28.58%
through prefit or loss Correlations 0.25-0.98
{-1.0to 1.0)
Total 41,420 58,975

1) Range information is provided in percentages, coefficients and represents the highest and lowest level significant
uncbservable valuation input used to value that type of financial instrument. A wide dispersion in the range does mot
necessanity reflect increased uncerainty o subjectiity in the valuation input and is fyplcally just a consequence of the
different charactesistics of the financial insiruments themselves.

Sensitivity of fair value to changes in unobservable inputs

Given that the valuation of Level 3 financial instruments fluctuate in response to a variety of factors,
including, but not limited to general market sentiment, credit, interest rate, foreign exchange and
correlation risk, current values may continue to decrease If conditions detenorate further. Corwversealy,
should conditions improve, an increase in the value of the Level 3 portfolio would be expected.
However, management does not anticapate a significant impact in the net fair value of Level 3 financial
instruments.

As the Company enters into derivative transactions to hedge its exposures in loans and medium term
notes, the increase or decrease in the value of the Level 3 portfolio will not significantly impact its
profits and losses. Hedging derivative instruments offset the positions arising from the derivatives
which are embedded in the debt instruments and limit the sensitivity of fair value to changes in
unabsenable inputs related to these financial instruments.

For each class of financial instrument described in the above tables, changes in each of the significant
unobsernyable inputs and assumptions used by the Company will impact upon the determination of a
fair value measuremert for the financial instrument. The sensitivity of these Level 3 fair value
measurements to changes in uncbservable inputs and interrelationships between those inputs are
described below:

Danvativas - Where the Company is long the underlying risk of a derivative, significant increases

(decreases) in the underlying of the dervative, such as interest rates or credit spreads in isolation or
gignificant decreases (increases) in dividend yields would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair
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value measurement. Where the Company is short the underlying risk of a derivative, the impact of
these changes would have a corwerse effect on the fair value measurements reported by the
Company.

Where the Company is long optionalty, recovery rates or comelation, significant increases
(decreases) in volatilities, recovery rates or comelation will generally result in a significantly higher
{lower) fair value measurement. Where the Company is short optionality, recovery rates or comelation,
the impact of these changes would have a corverse effect on the fair value measurements.

Day 1 gains and losses

Gains and losses genemted from the use of valuastion technigues with significant unobservable
parareters are defemred over the life of the contract until paramelters become observable or when the
ingrument is derecognised Changes in fair value after inception are recognised in the profit or loss
account The total fair value atinbutable to these financial instruments that is yet to be recognised in the
prafit or loss account as of the statement of finarcial pesition date is JPY 710 million gain (2013 JFY 211
millicn gain). The following table shows a reconciliation of movements in the day 1 gains and losses
between the beginning balances and the ending balances

March 2016 March 2015

Millions of JPY Millions of JBY
Beginning balance gainiloss) 211 (128)
New transactions 625 32
Amounts recognised in profit or loss during the year {126) 25
Ending balance gain Ti0 211

24. Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table provides a summary of financial assets and financial liabilities subject to the
Master Netting Agreements and similar agresments.

As of March 2016
Milkons of JPY

Related amounts not set off in
the statement of financial

position
Gross
amounts  Amounts
offset in presented
Gross amounts of the in the
recognised financial balance balance Financial Cash Net
assets/liabilities"”’ sheet sheet  instruments™  collateral™  Amount
Crerivative
financial assets 43526 . 43,526 {34,378) (7.930) 1,218
Loans and advances to
affiliates. 2110 - 2,110 1.174 - 3284
Other assats 24,360 - 24 360 {24,360 . -
Total financial assets
69,596 - £9,9%6 {57 564) (7,930) 4,502
Drerivative fimancial
liabilities 127,566 - 127,566 {57.564) (70,000
Tatal financial
liabilities 127,566 - 127,566 {57,564) {70,002) -
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As of March 2015

Millions of JPT
Related amounts not set off in
the statement of financial
position
Gross
amounts Amounts
offsatin presented
Gross amounts of the in the
recognised financial balance balance Financial Cash Met

assetsiliabilities’’ sheet sheet instruments®  collateral™  Amount
Derivative
financial assets 63,227 - 63,227 {586,505) (5,910) 812
Loans and
ardvances to affiliates 143,518 - 143,518 (5,903 . 137 615
Cither assets 1,280 1,280 [1,280) - -
Total financial assets

208,028 - 208,025 {&3,688) {5,150) 138,427

Derivative
financial liahilities 144 680 - 144 680 {53, 658) (B0, 892)
Tatal financial
liabilities 144,680 = 144,680 {63,588) {80,992) =

1) The bifurcated embedded derivatives are axcluded.

2)  Those represent amounts which are not permitted to be offset on the face of the balance shest bt which provide the
Company with the right of offset in the event of counterpanty defaul, insohvency or bankruplcy.

3 The cash collateral recelved against e positive mark to markel values of dervatives and the cash collateral pledged
towards the negative mark to markel values of derivalives are reported under Other Mabiliies and Obher assels
respactively.

The Comparny entered into ISDA Master Agreements with all denvative counterparties which grant the
Company the right to set off in the event of counterparty default, insolvency or bankruptcy. The
Company alse entered into On Balance Sheet and OFf Balance Sheet Master Nelting Agreements
with one of the counterparties which grant the Comparny the right to set off in the evert of counterparty
default, insolvency or bankruptey, These arangements reduce credit risk exposure relative to what
the credit exposure would be if the same counterparty were liable for their gross exposures on the
same underlying contracts.

Usually, netting arrangements are constifuted by a master netting agreement which specifies the
general terms of the agreement between the counterparties, including infformation on the basis of the
netting calculation, types of collateral, the definition of defaut and other termination evenls, the
calculation of damages (on default) and documentation required The Master Metting Agreement
contains the terms and conditions by which all (or as mary as possible) relevant transactions between
the counterparties are govermed. Multiple individual transactions are subsumed under this general
master netting agreement, forming a single legal contract under which the counterparties conduct
their relevant mutual business. In addition to the matigeton of credit nsk, placng individual
tranzactions under a single master netting agreement that provides for netting of transactions in scope
also helps to mitigate settlement risks asscciated with transacting in multiple junsdictions or across
multiple contracts.

25. Capital management policy

The objective of the Compary's capital management policy s 1o enswie that the Compary has an
appropriate level of capital, being issued capital and issued medium term notes.

The Comparny reviews the appropriate level of capital - the determination of the level of appropriate
capital will take into consideration the financing needs and liquidity position of the Nomura Group,

Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of -
March 2016 March 2015
Milliors of JPY Millions af JFY
lgsued and paid-up capital 6,560 66813
Share premium 1.3 1,31
Resarve 1,833 1,789
Total issued capital 8723 8723
Debt issued and ather barrawing 1,038,882 1,2254973
- Mon-current 822 557 1,075,548
- Currert 216,325 150,425
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through

profit or loss 654,663 417 586
= Mon-current 452 772 275941
- Current 181,881 141 645
Bormowing from affiiates 348,702 .
- Mon-current - -
= Current 348,702 -
Total issued capital and medium term notes 2,051,870 1,653,282

26. Related parties

Same as disclozed in elsewhere of these financial satements, the Company had the following material
transactions with related parties dunng the penod

a. Transactions with the parent

i. The Comparny entered inte loan agreements with NHI and earmed interest income of JPY
5423 milion for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015 JPY 2,539 milon). As of 31 March
2018, total outstanding loan to MHI amounted to JFY 1,133,600 million (2015 JPY 444 387
million). The outsanding balance is unsecured No impairment loss on the loans and
advances to MHI has been recognised for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March
2015,

i, The Company entered inte a dealer agreement with MHI, as one of the guarantors of the
Comparny notes (Refer to Mote 18), whereby the Company has agreed to pay a fee (Refer to
Mote 4) based on the average outstanding amaunt of the notes during the relevant calculation
period, JPY 73T million guarartes fees were repaned under Fae and commission expensa for
the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015 JPY 704 million). As of 31 March 2016, the guarantee
fee payable to MHI is JPY 737 millkon (204 5 JBY 704 million).

. In accordance with the Unlateral APAs (Refer to Note 10), the Company agreed to pay the
adjustment amount resulting from the AFA to NHIL The adjustment amount of JPY 5,162
million {201%: JPY 8 870 million) was reparted under Genaral and administralive expenses.
As of 31 March 2018, JPY 5,162 million is accrued under Other liabiithes (2015 JPY 8,870
million).

. The Company incurred service fee of JPY B milion for NHI's pravision of information
technology infrastructure support for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015 JPY 36 million).
This expensze iz reported under Genaral and administrative expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income. As of 31 March 2016, the service fee payable to NHI s JFY 34
million {2015 JPY 18 millicn).
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b. Transactions with the Managing Directors

As of 31 March 2016, the Company had two Managing Directors who were seconded from the
Mamira Group, Mo remuneration to the managng drectors was chargeable to the Comparty for
the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015,

€. Transactions with other related parties

i. The Company entered into loan agreemerts with other refated paries and earmed interest
income (Refer to Mote 3). All outstanding balances are unsecured Mo impaimment loss on
the loans and advances to affiliates has been recognised for the years ended 31 March
2016 and 31 March 2015

il. The Company entered into borrowing agreements with other related parties and incurred
interest expense (Refer to Note 3).

iii. The Compary entered into derivative transactions with other related parties under ISDA
Master Agreements. As of 31 March 2016, dervative financial assets and denvative financial
liabilities with other related partes amounted to JPY 43,006 million and JFY 127 046 million,
regpectively (31 March 2015: derivative financial assets - JPY 62 580 millicn and derivative
firancial liabdlities - JPY 144,033 millian).

iv. The Compary eamed interest income of nil from deposits placed to the curent account of a
related party bank (Refer to Mote 3) and does not have outstanding balance deposited with
this related party bank as of 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015 JPY 329 milkon).

v, As of 31 March 2016, total outstanding balance of debt issued by the Comparry held within
the Momura Group for liquidity or market making purpeses amounted to JPY 14,458 million
(2015; JPY 24 8358 million) of which JPY 11,754 million classified under Debt issued and cifer
borrowing (31 March 2015 JPY 23,653 million) and JPY 2715 million under Financial
fabilities designated at fair value through prafit or loss (31 March 2015: JPY 1,183 million;).

vi. The Company entered into a dealer agreement with one of the related parties in the Momura
Group, as guarantors of the Compary notes (Refer to Mote 18), whereby it has agreed to pay
a fee (Refer to Nole 4) based on the average outstanding amount of the notes during the
relevant calculation pericd JPY 17 milion guarantee fees were charged to Fee and
commission expense for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015. JFY 75 million). As of 31
Iarch 2016, the guaraniee fee payable to the other related party is JPY 17 million (2013 JPY
75 million).

wil. All the commitment fees and commission income for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31
March 2015 are from related parties (Refer to MNote 4)

v, The Company incurred service fees to cemain related parties for provison of operational
support which are reported under General and administrative expanseas in the statement of
comprehensive income (Refer to MNote 10),

ix, The Company entered into a dealer agreement with other related party who underarites
notes issued by the Compary including the notes classified under Financial liabilities
designated at fair valve through profit or loss. The Company economically hedges
structured nature of the notes by entering derivative trarsactions with anather other related
party. Gain or loss ansing from the notes was recognized under Net gain on financial
liabilities while gain or loss ansing from denivative transactions was recognized undar Mat
frading loss
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. Events after the reporting period

As of the date of this report, there have been no events subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2016
which require adjustment of or disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto

28. Other information

Auditor's report

The report of the auditors, Ernet & Young Accountants LLP, is presented on page 6,
Appropriation of result - Provision in the Company's articles of association

In accondance with Article 20 of the Compary's articles of agsociation, the net result shall be free at the
dispasal of the General Mesting.

Appropriation of result - Management proposal

The management proposes to deduct the tofal loss for the year ended 31 March 2016 of JPY 1,440
million from the retained earnings. This proposal has been reflected in the accounts.
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400 (
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)
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2006 26,650.28
200 200
2010 22 217.81
200 200
2009 16 1,062.83

HSILI(T) = HSILI(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (HSI(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K-1) x
(HSI(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) x Stamp Duty } ]

HSILI(T):
HSILI(T-1):
K: 2
D(T,T-1): T
HIBOR:
HSI(T):
HSI(T-1):
Stamp Duty:

Q)
Q)

T-1

11 HIBOR

50

HSISI(T) = HSISI(T-1)x [1 + {-Kx (TRHSI(T)/TRHSI(T-1) - 1) + (K+1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K+1)
x  (TRHSI(T)/TRHSI(T-1) - 1) x Stamp Duty } ]

HSISI(T):
HSISI(T-1):
K: 1
D(T,T-1): T
HIBOR:
TRHSI(T):
TRHSI(T-1):
Stamp Duty:

M
Q)
T-1
11 HIBOR
50
200

L(T) = L(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (F(T/F(T-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (r/365) x D(T,T-1) } 1]

L(T):

L(T-1) :

K: 2
D(T,T-1): T
r: 91 CD
F ():

F (T-1):

m 200
m 200

T-1

200
200
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I1(T) = I(T-1)x [1 + {-Kx (F(T)/F(T-1) - 1) + (Kx 0.85) x (r/365) x D(T,T-1) } ]

1(M): @) 200

1(T-1) : @) 200
K: 1

D(T,T-1): T T-1

r: 91 CD

F (M: 200

F (T-1): 200
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4  S&P500 VIX
B 2DEE EEEMLOEE
1BE [2EH 1HE |?2EH
SERSOD VIKEH EHESN -5%]  -10% SERRO VIXEHERES -5%| 14 5%
SEFEO VIKEM SR BEA R EH 5% 10% SEFROVIXEHE BB B AR EH 5% 15.5%
120
__d__-I
118 __,_a—*"'_‘
— L ---.--'--J-
108 --r_':_':___"_- E
_________‘h%“
4 ___"-—-_.,______
q_-_“"-“-
1]
o 168 08
—— SEPEO0 VIR TR = = SEPS00 VIEEREE R E A e (= 2 FEER
S&P500 VIX S&P500 VIX
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
21,711.94 16,883.90 18,621.28 20,188.97 25,020.79
9,211.14 11,051.90 12,727.99 14,247.32 12,699.12
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
16,049.05 15,897.31 15,066.39 13,529.42 11,329.05 12,655.65
13,882.29 14,430.76 13,485.74 10,170.75 9,874.67 11,042.35

Bloomberg

)
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
13,889.22 11,762.71 9,980.17 9,051.53 8,326.57
9,806.63 9,046.96 8,039.78 7,269.36 6,289.54
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
7,872.85 7,636.58 7,880.26 8,980.38 9,038.74 8,500.87
7,285.81 7,308.84 7,461.80 7,848.09 8,474.97 7,875.94
Bloomberg
)
200
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
392.78 301.10 280.59 266.45 262.63
195.62 216.14 203.23 206.87 171.49
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
217.45 220.78 213.84 192.12 189.61 207.56
195.45 197.62 195.92 172.24 173.44 194.40
Bloomberg
)
200
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
1,042.48 943.96 973.03 968.06 1,061.55
778.97 804.49 819.91 848.07 853.37
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
988.70 975.77 982.32 1,035.71 1,024.88 968.76
933.90 926.00 943.54 981.30 980.11 938.62
Bloomberg
)
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
19,777.96 18,165.96 21,287.61 17,282.81 18,661.12
11,086.39 12,791.36 11,789.05 13,008.66 12,892.62
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
15,641.45 14,827.22 13,977.11 14,131.91 15,118.81 16,245.14
13,972.79 13,122.07 12,892.62 12,689.91 14,182.40 14,755.56
)
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
9,012.31 7,605.91 7,440.81 6,843.90 6,609.49
6,516.57 6,326.39 5,743.28 5,864.94 5,616.84
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
6,388.74 6,567.86 6,609.49 6,650.32 6,283.18 6,130.21
6,028.66 6,187.50 6,352.74 6,295.83 6,076.03 5,851.50
)
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
14,556.61 14,438.04 19,673.33 19,692.15 7,657.50
7,276.33 7,311.98 12,373.64 7,251.21 1,639.20
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
4,130.77 3,641.34 2,779.75 1,771.23 1,269.71 1,219.02
3,151.84 2,748.80 1,639.20 769.87 785.64 985.64
)
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
9,667.17 8,485.15 6,317.46 7,331.00 11,676.76
7,037.92 6,239.43 4,699.46 4,631.99 6,349.01
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
8,724.47 9,225.50 11,676.76 15,713.56 12,944 .68 10,900.35
7,696.47 8,081.61 9,156.53 10,544 .64 10,623.56 9,673.29
)
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
- 115,929.82 128,730.71 97,741.36 50,080.55
- 46,875.39 47,519.52 38,902.54 17,065.71
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
30,018.42 21,679.57 21,800.42 28,817.47 35,750.10 30,131.07
21,973.85 19,974.13 18,007.22 19,340.72 23,721.91 21,567.47
Bloomberg
)
10
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
694.10 741.81 1,090.59 1,279.52 1,310.90
467.23 591.03 705.91 939.37 956.38
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
1,216.73 1,235.76 1,229.72 1,126.42 1,054.66 1,184.78
1,020.00 1,142.70 1,124.42 955.05 938.36 1,077.06
Bloomberg
)
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11
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
943.64 795.56 707.10 588.78 54414
796.16 699.04 548.22 486.78 470.73
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
521.58 489.78 490.16 528.90 530.48 492.99
476.01 471.78 470.73 489.08 498.87 469.09
Bloomberg
)
12
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
525.01 407.47 1,052.95 1,035.34 1,028.38
363.73 289.45 415.04 635.00 708.12
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
812.64 870.06 906.02 897.63 865.79 1,020.80
774.01 780.08 827.73 726.92 667.49 852.66
Bloomberg
)
13 STOXX 50
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
2,895.07 3,484.75 4,677.86 5,150.56 5,203.22
2,258.02 2,498.82 3,521.87 3,844.01 3,880.10
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
4,493.46 4,463.99 4,362.89 4,078.12 4,024 .56 4,279.23
3,880.10 4,283.98 4,079.01 3,655.67 3,756.64 3,943.96
Bloomberg
)
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14 Nifty50 ( )
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
673.87 661.31 619.83 557.57 474.70
489.00 538.10 520.21 404.60 391.25
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
450.15 465.70 474.70 498.90 521.60 503.30
432.45 445.80 453.60 455.10 481.00 470.65
India Index Services & Products Limited
)
15 Nifty50 @ ) ( )
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
3,112.66 2,331.45 2,435.45 3,989.95 4,264.20
1,516.95 1,572.14 1,717.96 2,095.79 2,824.25
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
3,392.70 3,196.35 3,093.25 3,077.90 2,747.90 2,831.55
3,131.50 2,930.00 2,824.25 2,555.50 2,319.25 2,484.50
India Index Services & Products Limited
)
16 S&P500 (
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
210.38 243.39 315.11 366.97 370.75
175.95 207.86 244 .59 292.78 334.63
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
365.27 369.96 369.41 358.43 366.07 387.67
340.13 355.19 354.48 335.97 34416 368.66
Bloomberg
)
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17 S&P REIT ( )
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
328.02 410.26 476.09 457.74 489.01
277.57 279.53 379.57 387.58 406.00
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
452.24 446.94 437.78 433.38 453.50 461.61
422.22 424.90 420.16 414.17 429.80 449.25
Bloomberg
)
18 70
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
20,882.10 20,381.91 29,269.04 33,197.05 39,564.81
16,870.17 16,657.74 20,095.17 25,848.62 30,917.41
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
37,349.73 38,108.75 38,038.71 35,683.14 35,087.06 33,315.46
34,116.05 36,494.50 35,483.57 30,989.72 28,342.08 31,147.95
Bloomberg
)
19 S&P500 VIX
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
222,444 172 233,875.313 423,374.969 565,724.813 605,652.688
56,324.219 79,734.570 213,519.953 308,462.031 271,068.219
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016
10 11 12
404,700.719 | 396,975.188 | 382,057.844 | 305,846.406 | 248,308.406 | 319,948.969
303,344.156 | 318,282.688 | 276,192.875 | 218,980.719 | 197,434.547 | 249,270.313

Bloomberg

)
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Independent auditor’s report

To: the shareholders of Nomura Europe Finance N.V.

Report on the audit of the financial statements 2015/2016

Our opinion

We have audited the financial statements 2015/2016 of Nomura Europe Finance NV. (the“Company”),
based in Amsterdam, the Netherlands.

In our opinion the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Company
asat 31 March 2016, and of itsresult and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (EU-IFRS) and with Part 9
of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The financial statements comprise:

The statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016

The following statements for the year then ended: the statement of comprehensive income,

the statements of changes in equity and cash flows

The notes comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
Basis for our opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Our responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of Nomura Europe Finance NV. in accordance with the Verordening inzake de
onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten (ViO) and other relevant independence
regulations in the Netherlands. Furthermore we have complied with the Verordening gedrags- en
beroepsregel s accountants (VGBA).

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our
opinion.
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Materiality

Benchmark applied
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JPY 8,464 million
0.5% of debt issued and other borrowings and

financial liabilities designated at fair value through

profit or loss.

Explanation

We have applied debt issued and other borrowings’

and financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss as benchmark as we believe
the total balance of issued debt is the most important
metric for the users of the financial statements.

We have also taken misstatements into account and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are
material for the users of the financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the managing directors that misstatements in excess of JPY 423 million, which are
identified during the audit, would be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view

must be reported on qualitative grounds.
Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements. We have communicated the key audit matters to the managing directors.
The key audit matters are not a comprehensive reflection of all matters discussed.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements asawhole and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of financial instruments— Derivative valuation

We consider the fair value of the derivative financial instruments as
disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements as a key audit
matter, due to the relative size of the accounts as compared to the
total balance sheet and materiality, but also given the inherent
complexity with aresulting risk for incorrect valuation of the
related accounts. The portfolio of the Company comprises of non-
listed derivatives where the values are based on valuation models
and both market observable (level 2 positions) and non-market
observable inputs (level 3 positions), as disclosed in note 23 of the
financial statements.

Valuation of financial instruments — financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss

We consider the fair value of the financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in note 19 to the
financial statements as akey audit matter due to the relative size as
compared to the total balance sheet and materiality.

We have tested the valuation of derivatives by testing
controlsin place at the Company, including those within
the model validation process and the independent price
verification process. Furthermore, we tested a sample of
the inputs to the valuations and performed independent
testing on fair values of positions held at 31 March 2016.
Additionally, we performed other substantive procedures
including analytical review procedures on the accounts
movements, inspection of material manual adjustments
and tested relevant disclosures for accuracy and

compl eteness.

We verified the valuation of financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit and loss by testing
the related controlsin place at the Company and by
performing substantive testing of the valuations, including
inputs and valuation models combined with independent
testing of fair values and inspection of material manual
adjustments.
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Valuation of financial instruments — loans and advances to affiliates
We consider the valuation of the loans and advances to affiliatesas ~ We challenged management assessment as to whether
disclosed in note 12, 23 and 26 to the financial statements as a key thereis any objective evidence of impairment. We
audit matter due to the size of the loan portfolio and given that an determined that the related parties were able to meet their
impairment may have a material effect on the income statement. financial obligations towards the Company throughout the
Based on the above management has performed an impairment year and through to the date of this report. The ultimate
analysis and concluded no impairment is necessary. parent of the Company, Nomura Holdings Inc., has an

intention to provide the necessary level of financial

support to its subsidiaries; we assessed the ability of

Nomura Holdings Inc. to continue as a going concern.
Responsibilities of management for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin
accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and for the preparation of the
managing directors report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore,
management is responsible for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the

preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting frameworks
mentioned, management should prepare the financial statements using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. Management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.
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Our responsibilities for the audit of the financia statements

Our objective isto plan and perform the audit assignment in a manner that allows usto obtain sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not
have detected all errors and fraud.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financia statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the
audit, in accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence
requirements. Our audit included e.g.:
I dentifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal
control.
Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting, and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’
sreport. However, future events or conditions may cause an the company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures;
Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with the managing directors regarding, among other matters, the timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We provide the managing directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them al relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the managing directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, not communicating the matter isin
the public interest.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Report on the managing directors report and the other information
Pursuant to legal requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code (concerning our obligation to
report about the managing directors report and other information):
We have no deficiencies to report as aresult of our examination whether the managing directors report, to the extent we
can assess, has been prepared in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and whether the information
asrequired by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code has been annexed.
We report that the managing directors report, to the extent we can assess, is consistent with the financial statements.

Engagement
We have been appointed as auditors for the audit of the financial statements 2015/2016 of Nomura Europe Finance NV. and

have been the external auditor for along time. The most recent rotation of the signing external auditor on the audit of the
Company’s financial statementswasin 2013. Rotation of the signing external auditor is one of our safeguards to maintain our
auditor independence.

Amsterdam, 5 July 2016

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

P.J.A.J. Nijssen
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